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1 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll hear Case 14253 and 

2 Case 14254 together. Case 14253 i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of 

3 Cimarex Energy Company f o r non-standard o i l spacing and 

4 p r o r a t i o n u n i t and compulsory pooling, Chavez County, 

5 New Mexico. 

6 Also heard at the same time w i l l be Case 

7 No. 14254, A p p l i c a t i o n of Cimarex Energy Company f o r 

8 non-standard o i l spacing and p r o r a t i o n operation u n i t and 

9 compulsory pooling, Chavez County, New Mexico. 

10 C a l l f o r appearances. 

11 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe 

12 representing the app l i c a n t . And I have three witnesses. 

13 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l of 

14 Montgomery and Andrews Law Firm of Santa Fe appearing on 

15 behalf of COG Operating, LLC. I have one witness t h i s 

16 morning. 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Would the witnesses 

18 please stand and s t a t e your names one at a time and be 

19 sworn in? 

2 0 MR. TRESNER: Hayden Tresner. 

21 MR. AST: David Ast. 

2 2 MR. AUDAS: Mark Audas. 

23 MS. PRESTON SPRADLIN: Jan Preston Spradlin. 

24 (Note: Witnesses placed under oath.) 

25 HEARING EXAMINER: Any opening statements? 
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1 MR. BRUCE: The only t h i n g I have to say, and I 

2 t h i n k t h a t you're aware, Mr. Examiner, COG presented f \ 3 

3 pooling cases on these two well units in November. ^ \ 

4 And f o r reasons t h a t my witness w i l l t e s t i f y 

5 about, at t h a t time, a p p l i c a t i o n s had j u s t been f i l e d on 

6 the Cimarex cases. 

7 So what we have here, you have now heard two 

8 d i f f e r e n t times, they're two competing pooling cases. I 

9 don't r e a l l y have an opening statement. 

10 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Hall? 

11 MR. HALL: I have no opening statement. 

12 HEARING EXAMINER: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Bruce, you 

13 may proceed. 

14 HAYDEN TRESNER, 

15 the witness herein, a f t e r f i r s t being duly sworn 

16 upon his oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

17 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. BRUCE: 

19 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name and c i t y of 

2 0 residence f o r the record? 

21 A. Hayden Tresner, and I reside i n Midland, Texas. 

22 Q. Who do you work f o r and i n what capacity? 

2 3 A. Cimarex Energy Company, and I am a landman. 

24 Q. Have you previously t e s t i f i e d before the 

25 Division? 
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1 A. I have not. 

2 Q. Would you summarize your educational and 

3 employment background f o r the examiners? 

4 A. Yes. I graduated from Texas C h r i s t i a n 

5 U n i v e r s i t y i n December 2004. I worked f o r approximately 

6 two and a h a l f years as petroleum landman i n south Texas, 

7 and then came t o work f o r Cimarex as a house landman l a s t 

8 October. 

9 Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y at Cimarex 

10 include t h i s p o r t i o n of southeast New Mexico? 

11 A. Yes, i t does. 

12 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

13 involved i n t h i s case? 

14 A. Yes, I am. 

15 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. Tresner 

16 as an expert petroleum landman. 

17 MR. HALL: No ob j e c t i o n . 

18 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Tresner i s so noted. 

19 Q. Mr. Tresner, we've marked e x h i b i t s i n the 

20 booklet labeled as E x h i b i t 1. Let's s t a r t w i t h the land 

21 p l a t behind the f i r s t tab. Could you describe what t h a t 

22 r e f l e c t s f o r the examiners? 

23 A. Yes. That's a land p l a t showing a l l of the 

24 Lower Abo wells th a t Cimarex Energy Company has d r i l l e d t o 

25 date, approximately 25 Lower Abo w e l l s , w i t h s i x being i n 
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1 the Caprock area i n Township 15 South, 31 East, Chavez 

2 County, New Mexico. 

3 Q. And does the yellow -- whether i t ' s dark yellow 

4 or l i g h t yellow, i n d i c a t e whole or p a r t i a l Cimarex 

5 acreage? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Okay. And then over i n 15-31, you've h i g h l i g h t 

8 i n bold Section 10. That's why we're here today regarding 

9 the south h a l f of Section 10, are we not? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. There's q u i t e a few w e l l s i n here. When d i d 

12 Cimarex f i r s t begin developing t h i s general area? 

13 A. The beginning of 2007. 

14 Q. So i t ' s been a c t i v e out here f o r a couple of 

15 years? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. Let's move on t o the next tab. What does the 

18 f i r s t land p l a t r e f l e c t ? 

19 A. That i s a land p l a t of a leasehold ownership i n 

2 0 the Caprock 15-31 i n Chavez County, New Mexico. The 

21 yellow t r a c t s are Cimarex acreage; the l i g h t blue or blue 

22 t r a c t s would be COG Chesapeake acreage. I t ' s j u s t a shot 

23 of the ownership i n Caprock. 

24 Q. Okay. And what does the next p l a t r e f l e c t ? 

25 A. I t ' s a basin survey topo map of a l l of Cimarex 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
2f174e10-d76c-4fe5-854b-7c34c3578576 



1 
Page 7 

Energy Company's State w e l l l o c a t i o n s . 

2 Q. Okay. And again, t h i s i s 15 south, 31 east? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q • And how many, roughly, are there i n t h i s 

5 township ? 

6 A. Approximately 55. 

7 Q. What i s behind the next tab? 

8 A. That i s a p l a t of the p i p e l i n e t h a t DCP --

9 Q • No -- I'm sorry -- Yes. Maybe mine are the o n l y 

10 ones out of order here. Okay. 

11 A. The next e x h i b i t i s a shot of the -- shows the 

12 route of the p i p e l i n e t h a t we've contracted w i t h DCP t o 

13 i n s t a l l t h a t extends from n o r t h Eddy County up i n t o the 

14 Caprock area 15-31. 

15 Q • Okay. And there are a couple follow-up pages. 

16 What are they? 

17 A. The same t h i n g , showing the route of the 

18 p i p e l i n e t o our w e l l l o c a t i o n s . 

19 Q. And so, regarding the p i p e l i n e , has Cimarex had 

20 t o commit t o do -- regarding volumes on i t s p i p e l i n e ? 

21 A. Yes, we have. We're t o provide a c e r t a i n volume 

22 of gas, and i f there i s any s h o r t f a l l i n t h a t , then 

23 there 1s fees associated w i t h the d i f f e r e n c e . 

24 Q. Okay. So you have committed funds necessary so 

25 t h a t you could f u l l y develop your acreage i n t h i s 
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1 township? 

2 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. I t h i n k there's -- the next -- are the Yorktown 

4 and -- there's a t h i r d p l a t w i t h Yorktown c a l l e d Fee 

5 No. 2. I s t h a t p i p e l i n e completed yet? 

6 A. Yes, i t i s . The Yorktown i s a producing w e l l . 

7 Q. Okay. And so the p i p e l i n e i s running through 

8 Section 10, so the p i p e l i n e i s r e a d i l y available? 

9 A. The southern h a l f , yes, s i r . 

10 Q. Okay. Then we get t o the t h i n g t h a t I skipped 

11 through. Behind the next tap there i s a Surface Use 

12 Agreement. What does that r e f l e c t ? 

13 A. That's a copy of the Surface Use Agreement we 

14 have i n place w i t h the la r g e s t s i n g l e landowner, B i l l 

15 Medlin. He owns the m a j o r i t y of the fee acreage i n t h i s 

16 township. 

17 Q. Okay. And that acreage i s r e f l e c t e d on 

18 E x h i b i t A t o the Surface Use Agreement? 

19 A. Yes, i t i s , i t ' s crosshatched. 

20 Q. Behind the next tab there's a p l a t . What does 

21 t h a t p l a t r e f l e c t ? 

22 A. The crosshatched t r a c t s on the p l a t represent 

23 the lands t h a t are covered under the Surface Use Agreement 

24 we have i n place w i t h the fee surface owner, B i l l Medlin. 

25 Q. So i t ' s j u s t a v i s u a l representation of the 
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1 Surface Use Agreement acreage? 

2 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Now, l e t ' s move t o the next p l a t , the p l a t o f 

4 Section 10. Can you discuss t h a t f o r the examiners? 

5 A. Yes. That's an ownership p l a t of Section 10. 

6 And as you can see by the colors on the map, Chesapeake 

7 owns the northeast quarter of t h i s Section 100 percent. 

8 Cimarex Energy Company owns the southeast p o r t i o n of t h i s 

9 Section 100 percent of the leasehold i n t e r e s t . And the 

10 west h a l f i s owned 50/50 by COG and Chesapeake. 

11 Q. Okay. Now, on t h i s p l a t you have Taurus 

12 Federal. That's what COG r e f e r s t o i t s w e l l as, the 

13 Taurus w e l l , does i t not? 

14 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. And t h i s also r e f l e c t s , though, what the 

16 l o c a t i o n would be of the Cimarex w e l l s , correct? 

17 A. This r e f l e c t s the surface and bottom hole 

18 l o c a t i o n s of COG's we l l s . 

19 Q. Of COG's we l l s . 

2 0 A. And how they propose those. 

21 Q. Okay. Now, COG has APDs on i t s w e l l s , correct? 

2 2 A. Correct. 

23 Q. And as a r e s u l t , the OCD w i l l not accept f o r 

24 f i l i n g any APDs f o r Cimarex as well? 

2 5 A. That i s my understanding. 
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1 Q. To the best of your knowledge, w i l l there be any 

2 d i f f e r e n c e i n the w e l l l o c a t i o n s between COG and the 

3 Cimarex wells? They would be roughly at the same 

4 l o c a t i o n , would they not? 

5 A. Yes. Both would be located i n the south h a l f of 

6 Section 10. 

7 Q. Okay. And so, one w e l l would be the north 

8 h a l f -- one w e l l u n i t would be the no r t h h a l f south h a l f 

9 of Section 10, and the other w e l l u n i t would be the south 

10 h a l f south h a l f of Section 10? 

11 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. And you do not have vol u n t a r y agreements w i t h 

13 e i t h e r COG or Chesapeake, do you? 

14 A. We do not. 

15 Q. And so those are the p a r t i e s you seek t o forc e 

16 pool i n these cases? 

17 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. And the ownership i n each instance would be 50 

19 percent of Cimarex, 25 percent COG, and 25 percent 

2 0 Chesapeake? 

21 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. Now, l e t ' s discuss Cimarex's e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n 

23 the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r i n these w e l l s . When I was looking 

24 at one of the e a r l i e r plan p l a t s , i t a c t u a l l y had the 

25 southeast quarter l i s t e d as Chevron acreage. Has Cimarex 
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1 acquired an assignment from Chevron on the southeast 

2 quarter? 

3 A. We have a term assignment from Chevron. 

4 Q. And what does the correspondence i n the 

5 documents under the next tab r e f l e c t ? 

6 A. The f i r s t l e t t e r i s my i n i t i a l proposal t h a t was 

7 made t o Chevron. I t was a request f o r a term assignment, 

8 and pa r t of the lands t h a t we were wanting t o acquire were 

9 the operating r i g h t s t o the southeast quarter of 

10 Section 10, 15-31 Chavez county. 

11 Q. Now, t h a t f i r s t o f f e r or request t o Chevron was 

12 made almost 11 months ago, correct? 

13 A. On February 18, 2008. 

14 Q. How long d i d i t f i n a l l y take t o get Chevron t o 

15 agree t o a term agreement? 

16 A. Chevron a c t u a l l y d e l i v e r e d our term assignment 

17 i n the mail by l e t t e r dated September 22, 2008. 

18 Q. So i t took seven years -- seven months t o make a 

19 deal w i t h Chevron? 

20 A. I t f e l t l i k e seven years, but seven months, yes. 

21 Q. And l i s t e d behind the f i r s t o f f e r l e t t e r i s the 

22 f i n a l Chevron l e t t e r w i t h the agreement, correct? 

23 A. That's a copy of the memorandum of our term 

24 assignment. 

25 Q. Okay. And now, once you got the term 
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1 assignment, d i d Cimarex then begin preparing proposal 

2 l e t t e r s and AFEs regarding i t s proposed wells? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. And what do the next couple of tabs r e f l e c t ? 

5 A. The next couple tabs are a copy of my w e l l 

6 proposal l e t t e r and the AFE t h a t we proposed the w e l l 

7 under t o COG and Chesapeake. 

8 Q. Okay. And t h a t ' s f o r the No. 1 Well, c o r r e c t ? 

9 A. No. 1. 

10 Q. And then there's -- Are the subsequent two tabs 

11 the proposal on the --

12 A. For the No. 2. 

13 Q. For the No. 2 Well? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . The f i r s t tab we proposed t o 

15 Chesapeake the No. 1. The second tab we proposed the No. 

16 1 t o COG. The t h i r d tab we proposed the No. 2 t o 

17 Chesapeake. And the f o u r t h tab we proposed the No. 2 t o 

18 COG. 

19 Q. Okay. I n your opinion, considering the time 

2 0 frame i t took t o reach an agreement w i t h Chevron, have you 

21 made a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o obt a i n the vol u n t a r y j o i n d e r 

22 of COG and Chesapeake i n your proposed wells? 

23 A. We have. 

24 Q. And t h i s i s j u s t f o r the examiners, j u s t so 

25 t h e y ' r e aware, but there are no unlocatable i n t e r e s t 
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1 owners i n t h i s acreage, correct? 

2 A. Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

3 Q. Do you request t h a t Cimarex be appointed 

4 operator of the well? 

5 A. Yes, we do. 

6 Q. And do you have a recommendation f o r the amounts 

7 Cimarex should be paid f o r supervision and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

8 expenses? 

9 A. As f a r as the overhead r a t e s and the -- $6,50 0 

10 f o r d r i l l i n g , and $650 a month f o r producing. 

11 Q. And are these amounts equivalent t o those 

12 normally charged by operators i n t h i s area f o r wells of 

13 t h i s depth? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. Do you request t h a t i f Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n s 

16 are granted t h a t these overhead rates be adjusted 

17 p e r i o d i c a l l y as provided by the COPAS accounting 

18 procedure? 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

2 0 Q. Mr. Tresner, I've handed out a couple more 

21 e x h i b i t s . The f i r s t one i s E x h i b i t 12. I s that simply a 

22 land p l a t of t h i s township? 

23 A. Yes, i t i s . 

24 Q. And does the second page accu ra t e ly l i s t the 

25 o f f s e t operators or working i n t e r e s t owners t o your two 
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1 proposed wells? 

2 A. Yes, I believe i t does. 

3 Q. And was n o t i c e of the pooling hearings given t o 

4 COG and t o Chesapeake? 

5 A. Yes, they were. 

6 Q. And was no t i c e of the non-standard u n i t p o r t i o n 

7 of these a p p l i c a t i o n s given t o the o f f s e t s l i s t e d on 

8 E x h i b i t 2? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, E x h i b i t s 3 and 4 are 

11 the Notice A f f i d a v i t s showing that notice was given t o and 

12 received w i t h respect t o Case 14253. And E x h i b i t s 5 and 6 

13 are my Notice A f f i d a v i t s w i t h respect t o Case 14254 . And 

14 a l l p a r t i e s d i d receive notice of the a p p l i c a t i o n s , and 

15 green cards are attached. 

16 Q. Now, there's some a d d i t i o n a l e x h i b i t s l e f t over 

17 or documents i n E x h i b i t 1. Cimarex's next witnesses w i l l 

18 discuss those documents? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. And were the documents w i t h i n E x h i b i t 1 t h a t you 

21 t e s t i f i e d t o prepared by you or under your supervision? 

22 A. They were. 

23 Q. And were E x h i b i t s 2 through 6 compiled from 

24 company business records? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. I n your opinion, i s the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation and the 

3 prevention of waste? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd move the admission 

6 of E x h i b i t s 2 through 6 at t h i s time and I ' l l move the 

7 admission of the f u l l e x h i b i t l a t e r . 

8 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

9 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll admit E x h i b i t s 2 

10 through 6. Mr. H a l l , would you l i k e t o cross? 

11 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. HALL: 

13 Q. Good morning, Mr. Tresner. 

14 A. Good morning. 

15 Q. You w i l l acknowledge, won't you, t h a t Cimarex 

16 p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the compulsory poo l i n g cases brought by 

17 COG i n Case Nos. 14203 and 14204 f o r the same acreage? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And Mr. Bruce represented you i n those hearings. 

2 0 They were held i n October, I b e l i e v e . And i s n ' t i t t r u e 

21 t h a t those cases were presented by COG and they were taken 

22 under advisement by the hearing examiner without o b j e c t i o n 

23 from Cimarex, would you agree? 

24 A. That i s my understanding. 

25 Q. Okay. And during the course of those 
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1 proceedings, Cimarex presented no o b j e c t i o n t o COG's 

2 proposed operations v i s - a - v i s i t s d r i l l i n g plan or i t s 

3 plans f o r completing these w e l l s ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? We 

4 don't have an issue there, do we? 

5 A. No. 

6 MR. BRUCE: I would note t h a t Mr. Tresner wasn't 

7 there and the record speaks f o r i t s e l f . 

8 Q. Okay, w e l l , l e t me ask you, to your knowledge, 

9 has Cimarex i n d i c a t e d t h a t i t objects to COG's d r i l l i n g 

10 and completion plans f o r these w e l l s i n any way? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. I t has? What i s the objection? 

13 A. We're seeking to be named operator on these same 

14 w e l l l o c a t i o n s t h a t COG i s seeking operatorship of. 

15 Q. That's the only objection? 

16 A. Yes, that's our o b j e c t i o n . 

17 Q. Okay. No o b j e c t i o n t o the te c h n i c a l merits o f 

18 COG's d r i l l i n g plans? 

19 A. Not from the Land Department. 

2 0 Q. Okay. And t o your knowledge, we don't have a 

21 dispute over the geology on the south h a l f of Section 10? 

22 A. I don't know what your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the 

23 geology i s . 

24 Q. Okay. Has Cimarex i n d i c a t e d tha t i t ob j ec t s t o 

25 any p a r t i c u l a r cost l i n e i tem i n COG's AFEs f o r the w e l l s 
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1 i t proposed? 

2 A. Not t o my knowledge. 

3 Q. Okay. So the only dispute between COG and 

4 Cimarex i s who gets t o operate, p e r i o d . I s tha t a l l ? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. Okay. Aside from t h a t issue, i s there any issue 

7 i n your view as a landman experienced i n t h i s area t h a t 

8 would have any bearing on the prevention of waste or 

9 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s t h a t the Examiner needs t o know about? 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. Okay. I f we look at the south h a l f of 

12 Section 10, i n any of the e x h i b i t s you presented today, 

13 Cimarex has f i l e d no Notice of Staking or applied f o r an 

14 APDs on any of the acreage we're t a l k i n g about; i s t h a t 

15 r i g h t ? 

16 A. No, we have not. 

17 Q. You discussed under Tab 2 your proposed p i p e l i n e 

18 right-of-way presented i n agreement w i t h DCP. Let me ask 

19 you about t h a t b r i e f l y . I s t h i s p i p e l i n e right-of-way 

20 acquired and i s i t fixed? Or do you know? 

21 A. I'm not sure I understand the question. 

22 Q. Does t h i s represent a c t u a l acquired p i p e l i n e 

23 right-of-way? 

24 A. The f i r s t p l a t and second p l a t and t h i r d p l a t s 

25 under the E x h i b i t 2, I believe i t i s , represents the path 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
2f 174e10-d76c-4fe5-854b-7c34c3578576 



Page 18 

1 of DCP's p i p e l i n e . 

2 Q. Okay. Do you know where whether DCP has 

3 acquired right-of-way? 

4 A. They have. 

5 MR. BROOKS: I believe i t ' s not E x h i b i t 2, i t ' s 

6 the t h i r d tab under E x h i b i t 1. 

7 A. I apologize. 

8 Q. And which of these p i p e l i n e l i n k s have a c t u a l l y 

9 been constructed, can we t e l l from t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

10 A. Which of the p i p e l i n e l i n k s have been 

11 constructed? 

12 Q. Yes. 

13 A. The main l i n e i s shown there on the f i r s t page. 

14 Q. Is th a t i n blue? 

15 A. I t i s i n a red dotted l i n e . 

16 Q. Okay. 

17 A. And i t ' s my understanding t h a t t h a t ' s t h e i r 10 

18 inch l i n e . And then we have m u l t i p l e connection p o i n t s t o 

19 t h a t main l i n e throughout the township t h a t we've -- We've 

20 d r i l l e d and completed s i x wells i n t h a t township. So 

21 there's s i x d i f f e r e n t connection p o i n t s . 

22 Q. Now, you indica t e d Cimarex has a volume 

23 commitment pursuant t o contract w i t h DCP f o r i t ' s system; 

24 i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

25 A. I t ' s my understanding t h a t we do, yes. 
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1 Q. Okay. Do you know of any reason why Cimarex 

2 couldn't take i t s gas from the COG operated wells and use 

3 t h a t gas t o f u l f i l l a p o r t i o n of i t s commitment to DCP? 

4 A. I see no reason why we couldn't. 

5 Q. Okay. Look under your f o u r t h tab, I believe i t 

6 i s , which i s your SOPA w i t h Medlin. 

7 A. Okay. 

8 Q. When d i d the Medlins a c t u a l l y execute th a t SOPA 

9 agreement? 

10 A. They executed the Surface Use and Compensation 

11 Agreement on the 10th day of August 2008. 

12 Q. Okay. And you're aware t h a t COG had p r e v i o u s l y 

13 negotiated a SOPA agreement w i t h the Medlins and f i l e d a 

14 recording memorandum of th a t agreement i n the county 

15 records, are you not? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And COG's SOPA agreement predates Cimarex's 

18 agreement by a year? 

19 A. Uh-huh. 

2 0 Q. Do you agree? 

21 A. According t o the agreement t h a t COG presented 

22 during t h e i r hearing, yes. 

23 Q. Okay. I f you look at E x h i b i t A t o the Cimarex 

24 SOPA agreement, i t r e f e r s t o the west h a l f of Section 10. 

25 Has Cimarex a c t u a l l y paid surface owners f o r any lo c a t i o n s 
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1 there? 

2 A. Locations on the west h a l f of 10, no. 

3 Q. Okay. I ' l l ask you about Cimarex's a c q u i s i t i o n 

4 of term assignment from Chevron. When d i d you a c t u a l l y 

5 have an executed term assignment i n hand? 

6 A. Mr. Baca's l e t t e r i s dated September 22, 2008, 

7 so I'm assuming w i t h i n three days a f t e r t h a t . 

8 Q. Okay. Do you know at the time Cimarex f i l e d i t s 

9 a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r compulsory po o l i n g i n these two cases 

10 wheither Cimarex a c t u a l l y had any record t i t l e i n t e r e s t i n 

11 the south h a l f of 10? 

12 A. At the time we f i l e d these a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r 

13 force pooling, d i d we have record t i t l e ? 

14 Q. Yes. 

15 A. I don't have the a p p l i c a t i o n s i n f r o n t of me, 

16 but I believe th a t they were f i l e d a f t e r we acquired the 

17 term assignment from Chevron. 

18 Q. Okay. And you're aware t h a t COG has entered 

19 i n t o an operating agreement w i t h Chesapeake f o r i t s 

20 i n t e r e s t i n the south h a l f of 10, are you not? 

21 A. I'm aware of t h a t . 

22 Q. Did Cimarex attempt t o negotiate any s o r t of an 

23 agreement w i t h Chesapeake f o r t h i s acreage at a l l ? 

24 A. No, we haven't. 

25 Q. They simply got a w e l l proposal f o r t h e i r 
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1 i n t e r e s t ? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Has Cimarex committed c a p i t a l i n i t s budget f o r 

4 the d r i l l i n g of the two wells i n the south h a l f of 

5 Section 10? 

6 A. Those two wells do appear on our 2009 planned 

7 d r i l l i n g schedule. 

8 Q. Okay. And when are they planned for? 

9 A. There's a copy of a d r i l l i n g schedule. I t ' s 

10 behind the l a s t tab, about halfway through the paper f i l e d 

11 under the l a s t tab. There's a copy of our d r i l l i n g 

12 schedule f o r t h i s area i n 2009. 

13 Q. Okay. Getting back t o my question, does t h i s 

14 mean t h a t c a p i t a l has been committed f o r the d r i l l i n g o f 

15 these wells? I f you know. 

16 A. I do not know. 

17 Q. Okay. Do you have any reason t o believe t h a t i f 

18 COG d r i l l s these two wells r a t h e r than Cimarex, waste w i l l 

19 r e s u l t or c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s w i l l be impaired? 

2 0 A. I don't know. 

21 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

2 2 MR. BROOKS: I f I understand the ownership 

23 c o r r e c t l y , the south h a l f u n i t i s 50/50 Cimarex and COG; 

24 i s th a t correct? 

25 THE WITNESS: The south h a l f of Section 10 i s 
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1 owned -- the southeast q u a r t e r o f t h a t s e c t i o n i s owned 

2 100 pe r c e n t by Cimarex, and then t h e southwest q u a r t e r o f 

3 S e c t i o n 10 i s owned 50/50 Chesapeake and COG. 

4 MR. BROOKS: Okay, so Chesapeake has --

5 THE WITNESS: Chesapeake has a 50 pe r c e n t 

6 i n t e r e s t i n t h e o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s i n t h e west h a l f o f 

7 S e c t i o n 10. COG has a 50 p e r c e n t w o r k i n g i n t e r e s t as 

8 w e l l . 

9 MR. BROOKS: Do you have an o p e r a t i n g agreement 

10 w i t h Chesapeake? 

11 THE WITNESS: We do n o t . No, s i r , we've j u s t 

12 proposed t he w e l l s . 

13 MR. BROOKS: Okay. Have you been i n 

14 n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Chesapeake about t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

15 THE WITNESS: We have n o t . They have n o t 

16 responded t o o u r w e l l p r o p o s a l . 

17 MR. BROOKS: Thank you. 

18 HEARING EXAMINER: Any i d e a why Chesapeake 

19 doesn't respond? 

2 0 THE WITNESS: I t h i n k t h a t Chesapeake i s w e l l • 

21 aware t h a t a l l o f t h i s i s t a k i n g p l a c e and as f a r as I can 

22 t e l l , t h e y ' r e g o i n g t o s i t on the s i d e l i n e s and watch. 

23 HEARING EXAMINER: Now, can you go t o t h i s s l i d e 

24 here t h a t ' s about f i v e tabs back, I b e l i e v e ? 

25 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 
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1 HEARING EXAMINER: T e l l me one more time, 

2 does -- We're looking at the south half? 

3 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

4 HEARING EXAMINER: That southeast quarter. 

5 THE WITNESS: Cimarex owns 100 percent of the 

6 operating r i g h t s there. 

7 HEARING EXAMINER: That's 100 percent Cimarex? 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

9 HEARING EXAMINER: And on the southwest i s 50 

10 percent Chesapeake, 50 percent COG? 

11 THE WITNESS: Yes. Each one has an undivided 50 

12 percent working i n t e r e s t i n tha t acreage. 

13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. I have no more 

14 questions. Mr. Bruce? 

15 MR. BRUCE: Just a couple. 

16 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. BRUCE: 

18 Q. Mr. Tresner, Mr. H a l l asked you questions on 

19 geology. To the best of your knowledge, COG d i d not 

20 present any geologic evidence at the hearings on t h e i r 

21 cases, correct? 

2 2 A. Not t o my knowledge. 

23 Q. And Cimarex i s not presenting any geology today, 

24 correct? 

2 5 A. We're not. 
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1 Q. And from a land perspective - - o r l e t ' s j u s t 

2 say, Cimarex i s a partner w i t h COG i n other w e l l s , 

3 correct? 

4 A. Yes. They're i n three of the wells t h a t we have 

5 d r i l l e d i n t h i s township. 

6 Q. Okay. And Cimarex and COG gene r a l l y get along 

7 f a i r l y well? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. This i s not meant as -- As they say, i t ' s 

10 s t r i c t l y business and f o r operation purposes, i s i t not? 

11 A. Yes, that's c o r r e c t . 

12 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, t h a t ' s a l l I have w i t h 

13 the witness. I would note w i t h respect t o one of 

14 Mr. Ha l l ' s questions, t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r these two 

15 cases were f i l e d on October 30th, which i s a f t e r the date 

16 of execution of the term assignment from Chevron. 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: So noted. The witness may 

18 step down. 

19 DAVID AST, 

20 the witness herein, a f t e r f i r s t being duly sworn 

21 upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 3 BY MR. BRUCE: 

24 Q. Please state your name and c i t y of residence f o r 

2 5 the record. 
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David A s t , Midland, Texas. 

2 Q. And who do you work f o r and i n what c a p a c i t y ? 

3 A. Cimarex Energy Company, R e s e r v o i r Engineer. 

4 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e the 

5 D i v i s i o n ? 

6 A. I have n o t . 

7 Q. Would you summarize your e d u c a t i o n a l and 

8 employment background f o r t he Examiner? 

9 A. I graduated i n 1992 from t h e U n i v e r s i t y o f 

10 Regina i n Canada. Worked 13 years i n Calgary. Had a 

11 t h r e e y e a r i n t e r n a t i o n a l assignment. And now i n M i d l a n d , 

12 Texas, my c a r e e r covers o p e r a t i o n s , p r o d u c t i o n , r e s e r v o i r , 

13 and a l i t t l e b i t o f d r i l l i n g . 

14 Q. Okay. And how l o n g have you been w i t h Cimarex? 

15 A. S i x months. 

16 Q. And does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a t Cimarex 

17 i n c l u d e t h i s p o r t i o n o f southeast New Mexico? 

18 A. Yes, i t does. 

19 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h r e s e r v o i r m a t t e r s 

20 r e l a t e d t o t hese a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

21 A. Yes, I am. 

22 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I t e n d e r Mr. Ast as an 

23 e x p e r t i n r e s e r v o i r e n g i n e e r i n g . 

24 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

25 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Ast i s r e c o g n i z e d as an 
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1 expert r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

2 Q. Mr. Ast, s t a r t i n g o f f w i t h the black and 

3 mu l t i - c o l o r e d c h a r t . F i r s t , what does t h a t r e f l e c t ? 

4 A. This f i r s t chart r e f l e c t s the s i x wells t h a t we 

5 have d r i l l e d i n our Caprock area. And i t shows our days 

6 t o d r i l l the v e r t i c a l section, days t o d r i l l h o r i z o n t a l , 

7 are w a i t i n g on completion, days complete, and our days f o r 

8 production. And i t also shows our act u a l costs of those 

9 wells t h a t we've d r i l l e d . 

10 Q. Okay. And i f you'd f l i p over to the next page, 

11 what does t h a t s i s t e r chart r e f l e c t ? 

12 A. That i s the same chart j u s t w i t h a d d i t i o n a l 

13 w e l l s . This r e f l e c t s a l l of our grassroots wells t h a t 

14 we've d r i l l e d i n the lower Abo formation, and i t r e f l e c t s 

15 the same type of days and actual cost information. 

16 Q. Generally i n looking at these, i s there a s l i g h t 

17 downward trend i n the number of days t o d r i l l these wells? 

18 A. Absolutely. Looking at the chart w i t h a l l the 

19 18 wells on there, you can see we c e r t a i n l y had some 

20 growing pains at the beginning t o f i g u r e out what we had 

21 t o do and how we had to do i t and how we wanted t o do i t . 

22 And i f you look at the chart w i t h j u s t the s i x 

23 wells on i t , you can see how we've cut our days down. Our 

24 c a p i t a l cost i s coming down. 

2 5 And we're a c t u a l l y changing the way tha t we're 
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1 d r i l l i n g these wells because we're using our learnings and 

2 experience t h a t we had i n our previous w e l l s to get us t o 

3 a b e t t e r w e l l quicker, f a s t e r , more e f f i c i e n t l y . 

4 Q. Okay, and w e ' l l mention t h a t i n a minute. But 

5 l e t ' s go over the next few charts which are production 

6 charts. What do they r e f l e c t ? 

7 A. These are the production charts from the o f f s e t 

8 wells i n Section 11 which are d i r e c t east o f f s e t s t o the 

9 wells t h a t we're proposing i n Section 10. 

10 The Enterprise 1 was our f i r s t w e l l d r i l l e d . 

11 And you can see how the production came on i t , give or 

12 take, about 300 b a r r e l s a day, and has t r a i l e d o f f . 

13 By the time we got t o Enterprise 2-H and 3-H, we 

14 used a l l of our p r i o r learnings. We d r i l l e d these w e l l s 

15 at the same time. We d r i l l e d one of them without a p i l o t 

16 hole. 

17 We a c t u a l l y d i d a simul-frac s t i m u l a t i o n on 

18 these w e l l s , and the charts show f a n t a s t i c r e s u l t s of t h a t 

19 s i m u l - f r a c . The Enterprise 3 i s coming on at somewhere i n 

20 the neighborhood of 700 to 800 b a r r e l s a day. 

21 Q. Okay, so tha t ' s one of the things you mentioned 

22 w i t h your experience are these simul-fracs? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

24 Q. Okay. What do the -- w e l l , there's two charts 

25 i n one p l a s t i c binder. What do these d a i l y production 
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1 charts r e f l e c t ? 

2 A. I t r e f l e c t s a l l the w e l l s that we've d r i l l e d i n 

3 the Lower Abo. And tha t dates back t o '07 when we had our 

4 f i r s t production. And i t i s j u s t showing how we're 

5 g e t t i n g the bumps i n our production as we're using our 

6 p r i o r experience and learnings t o get b e t t e r w e l l s . 

7 The second chart shows the s i x wells only i n the 

8 Caprock area. And you can see how we have a gap i n our 

9 gas production there when we are w a i t i n g on that deep 

10 p i p e l i n e t o get out there so we can produce that gas. 

11 And i t also a shows s i g n i f i c a n t bump at the end 

12 of t h i s year when we d i d the si m u l - f r a c on the E n t e r p r i s e 

13 2-H and 3-H. 

14 Q. And you're t a l k i n g about the red l i n e , the gas 

15 production? 

16 A. Yes, sorry. The gas production i s the red l i n e . 

17 And you can see the green l i n e takes a s i g n i f i c a n t bump 

18 near the end of '08 due t o the Enterprise 2-H and 3-H 

19 success. 

2 0 Q. What are the -- even though no geology was 

21 presented, both Cimarex and COG are t a r g e t i n g the same 

22 zone, are they not? 

23 A. That's co r r e c t , they are t a r g e t i n g the same 

24 zone. 

25 Q. And what i s the approximate v e r t i c a l depth o f 
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1 the -- I've seen i t r e f e r r e d t o as the Wolfcamp or the 

2 Lower Abo. 

3 A. This i s the Lower Abo. Approximate TVD i s 8,700 

4 f e e t . 

5 Q. Okay. And so, w i t h the number of wells you 

6 d r i l l e d out here, f i r s t of a l l , you keep g e t t i n g b e t t e r 

7 r e s u l t s on shortening the d r i l l i n g time? 

8 A. That i s co r r e c t . 

9 Q. And you also have a good handle on the costs 

10 involved? 

11 A. That i s cor r e c t . And we're a c t u a l l y changing 

12 how we're d r i l l i n g them, as w e l l , t o decrease those costs, 

13 t o continue t o decrease those costs. 

14 Q. Okay. Let's move on t o the f i n a l chart I'm 

15 going t o have you discuss, i s the d r i l l i n g schedule. 

16 Would you discuss that f o r the examiners? 

17 A. The d r i l l i n g schedule shows t h a t we have these 

18 two w e l l s i n Tatum 1 and i n Tatum 10-2 s t a r t i n g t o d r i l l 

19 A p r i l 1st. We have had very serious discussion inhouse t o 

20 a c t u a l l y d r i l l those wells simultaneously, t o get a second 

21 r i g out there t o d r i l l those two w e l l s at the same time 

22 beginning on or about A p r i l 1st. 

23 And t h a t i s so we can, again, do the simul-frac 

24 s t i m u l a t i o n on them and get the r e s u l t s r e f l e c t e d i n the 

25 2-H and 3-H. 
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1 Q. Okay. So you t h i n k t h a t i f you d r i l l both w e l l s 

2 at the same time and simul-frac them, y o u ' l l get better-

3 production r e s u l t s ? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t , because again, that's what we've 

5 learned from our previous experience. 

6 Q. I n your opinion, w i l l the g r a n t i n g of Cimarex's 

7 pooling a p p l i c a t i o n s be i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation 

8 and the prevention of waste? 

9 A. Yes, I do. 

10 Q. And based on your experience, Cimarex's 

11 experience i n the area, do you t h i n k you can best d r i l l 

12 and complete the wells? 

13 A. Yes, we do. 

14 Q. And were the charts you j u s t described prepared 

15 by you or under your supervision? 

16 A. Yes, they were. 

17 MR. BRUCE: I pass the witness, Mr. Hearing 

18 Examiner. 

19 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Hall? 

20 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

21 BY MR. HALL: 

22 Q. Mr. Ast, do you agree w i t h Mr. Tresner t h a t we 

23 don't have a dispute between the p a r t i e s over e i t h e r 

24 party's competence or a b i l i t y t o d r i l l and operate these 

25 wells? 
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A. I do not have any issue w i t h the competence. I 

2 do have issue w i t h the way they are l a i d out on the 

3 proposed w e l l proposals t h a t we received from COG. 

4 Q. And i t ' s t r u e , i s n ' t i t , t h a t i n the course o f 

5 COG's compulsory pooling a p p l i c a t i o n s and i n i t s 

6 prehearing statements f o r these p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , those 

7 issues were not i d e n t i f i e d , they weren't mentioned at a l l ? 

8 

9 

A. I can't comment on th a t because I wasn't at 

hearing. 

the 

10 Q. Okay, or i n the prehearing statement t h a t 

11 Cimarex f i l e d i n t h i s case? 

12 A. I haven't seen t h a t , so I don't know. 

13 Q. And l i k e w i s e , Cimarex has not i n d i c a t e d i n the 

14 COG cases or i n i t s prehearing statements f o r t h i s case 

15 t h a t i t has any issue w i t h COG's w e l l costs f o r i t s 

16 proposed w e l l s or i t ' s AFEs? 

17 A. That i s correct. 

18 Q. And as Mr. Tresner t e s t i f i e d , do you agree t h a t 

19 there's no issue w i t h respect t o waste or c o r r e l a t i v e 
\ 

20 r i g h t s regardless of who operates these w e l l s , do you J 21 agree? 

22 A. May I ask what waste i s defined as? 

23 Q. Waste i s premature abandonment of o i l reserves. 

24 I t ' s a s t a t u t o r y d e f i n i t i o n . 

25 A. Then yes, I do have some concern w i t h t h a t . 
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1 Because the way the we l l s are proposed, they w i l l be 

2 d r i l l e d opposite t o one another, which would make i t very 

3 d i f f i c u l t t o simul-frac them. 

4 And we've already shown t h a t the simul-frac 

5 s t i m u l a t i o n a c t u a l l y increases reserves and w e ' l l be able 

6 t o recover more reserves than a s i n g l e w e l l s t i m u l a t i o n . 

7 Secondly, the proposed wells were proposed w i t h , 

8 I believe, s i x stages of f r a c t u r e s t i m u l a t i o n , whereas, 

9 again, we have found t h a t eight stages of simul-frac leads 

10 t o b e t t e r reserve recovery. 

11 Q. Now, i n drawing that conclusion, d i d you 

12 undertake an analysis of the f r a c t u r e completions -- the 

13 d r i l l i n g and f r a c t u r e completion techniques that COG has 

14 used i n i t s h o r i z o n t a l d r i l l i n g s ? 

15 A. No, I have not. 

16 Q. Okay. Your d r i l l i n g schedule e x h i b i t , i t shows 

17 "Rig TBD t o be determined"? 

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. I s there a r i g contracted f o r t h i s area? 

20 A. No, there i s not. 

21 Q. Okay. How f i r m are the A p r i l and May dates t h a t 

2 2 are shown on your e x h i b i t ? 

23 A. Making the assumption t h a t costs come down a 

24 l i t t l e b i t and pr i c e s rebound somewhat, then we're q u i t e 

25 confident t h a t we can get out there A p r i l 1st and d r i l l 
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2 Q. So you won't d r i l l u n t i l those assumptions are 

3 f u l f i l l e d ; i s that r i g h t ? 

4 A. No, t h a t i s not c o r r e c t . Because I've a c t u a l l y 

5 done some work very r e c e n t l y t h a t I haven't presented t o 

6 management yet tha t shows we may be able t o d r i l l them 

7 sooner. 

8 Q. Management has not approved t h a t ; i s t h a t 

9 correct? 

10 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. Do you know i f c a p i t a l has been committed t o the 

12 d r i l l i n g of these two wells? 

13 A. Committed as i n --

14 Q- Budgeted? 

15 A. I t i s budgeted, yes. 

16 Q. Committed i n any other way? 

17 A. No, s i r . 

18 MR. HALL: No f u r t h e r questions, Mr. Examiner. 

19 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Brooks? 

20 MR. BROOKS: I don't have any questions. 

21 HEARING EXAMINER: I have a couple questions. 

22 I f we go back, I t h i n k t o the l a s t s l i d e we were looking 

23 at , or the s l i d e j u s t past the d r i l l i n g schedule which we 

24 haven't gotten to yet, t h a t shows the h o r i z o n t a l on the 

25 3-H? 
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1 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

2 HEARING EXAMINER: You s t a r t t o make your r a d i u s 

3 at about 8,500 f e e t or something l i k e t h a t , 8,600? 

4 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

5 HEARING EXAMINER: Where would we penetrate t he 

6 Lower Abo? 

7 THE WITNESS: Probably somewhere i n the 

8 neighborhood of 9,100, 9,000 f e e t at measured depth. 

9 HEARING EXAMINER: Uh-huh. And i s t h a t 

10 i n d i c a t e d here on t h i s --

11 THE WITNESS: No, I don't believe i t i s . 

12 HEARING EXAMINER: Would you care t o make a 

13 guesstimate as t o where you would penetrate i t ? 

14 THE WITNESS: TBD wise? 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: Yeah. 

16 THE WITNESS: An estimate? I n the neighborhood 

17 of 8,800, 8,900. 

18 HEARING EXAMINER: A l l r i g h t . From r i g h t there 

19 i t p r e t t y w e l l f l a t t e n s out? 

20 THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . That's our plan, i s t o 

21 enter the Abo v i r t u a l l y f l a t and land i t s o f t i n there. 

22 HEARING EXAMINER: So then t h a t e n t i r e i n t e r v a l , 

23 you're l o o k i n g at an eight stage frac? 

24 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t , from the toe t o 

2 5 the heel, there would be an eight stage f r a c . 
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HEARING EXAMINER: And I'm not r e a l f a m i l i a r at 

2 a l l w i t h the simultaneous f r a c t i n g . 

3 THE WITNESS: I t ' s a r e l a t i v e l y new operation 

4 t h a t we've been doing. We've done i t now, I believe, on 

5 three separate sets of we l l s , two or three i n another area 

6 we operate, and one i n t h i s . 

7 The idea behind the simu l - f r a c i s t h a t the 

8 freictures come from each w e l l bore, h i t each other and 

9 sheer o f f , and then go p a r a l l e l w i t h the w e l l bore 

10 touching no rock. 

11 HEARING EXAMINER: So you're p h y s i c a l l y set up, 

12 you've got your fr a c equipment, your pumps and everything 

13 at both l o c a t i o n s on both wells? 

14 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . And when we 

15 complete these, we land our completion system, our peek 

16 system, so we have our i n t e r v a l s r e l a t i v e l y w i t h i n , say, 

17 50 fee t of one another so they're f r a c t u r i n g the same 

18 section of the w e l l at the same time. 

19 HEARING EXAMINER: A l l r i g h t . 

20 THE WITNESS: So th a t the f r a c s are pumped 

21 simultaneously one down each w e l l . 

22 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Thank you. No f u r t h e r 

23 questions. Mr. Bruce? 

24 MR. BRUCE: I don't have any f o l l o w up. 

25 
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MARK AUDAS, 

2 the witness herein, a f t e r f i r s t being duly sworn 

3 upon h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. BRUCE: 

6 Q. Would you please state your name? 

7 A. Mark Audas. 

8 Q- And where do you reside? 

9 A. I reside i n Cisco, Texas, a suburb of Dallas. 

10 Q • Who do you work for? 

11 A. Cimarex Energy. 

12 Q. And what's your job there? 

13 A. I'm a d r i l l i n g and completions engineer. 

14 Q. Have you prev i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

15 Division? 

16 A. No, I have not. 

17 Q. Would you summarize your education and 

18 employment background? 

19 A. I graduated i n 1999 from Louisiana State 

20 U n i v e r s i t y w i t h a Petroleum Engineering degree. I went t o 

21 work f o r Coastal O i l and Gas two years as a production 

22 completion engineer, and got t r a n s f e r r e d t o D r i l l i n g f o r 

23 two years Then d i d r e s e r v o i r f o r a year, and then came 

24 to Cimarex. For the l a s t three and a h a l f years, I've 

25 been doing d r i l l i n g completions. 
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1 Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y at Cimarex 

2 include t h i s p o r t i o n of southeast New Mexico? 

3 A. Yes, i t does. 

4 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the d r i l l i n g and 

5 operation of the wells i n t h i s township th a t i s operated 

6 by Cimarex? 

7 A. Yes, I am. 

8 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd tender the witness 

9 as an expert d r i l l i n g engineer. 

10 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

11 HEARING EXAMINER: So accepted. 

12 Q. Let's rummage through the f i n a l documents i n 

13 t h i s E x h i b i t 1 booklet. F i r s t of a l l , as you understand 

14 i t , because there are e x i s t i n g APDs issued t o COG, at t h i s 

15 p o i n t Cimarex cannot f i l e w i t h the D i v i s i o n any 

16 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o d r i l l , correct? 

17 A. That's my understanding on t h a t . 

18 Q. So at t h i s p o i n t , you do not have an APD or 

19 d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g prognosis f o r these two p a r t i c u l a r 

20 wells? 

21 A. No, I've not had one prepared yet. 

22 Q. Okay. What do the f i r s t few pages of t h i s 

23 e x h i b i t r e f l e c t ? 

24 A. This i s the d i r e c t i o n a l plan f o r the Enterprise 

25 3-H. This was one of the wells t h a t was done without a 
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1 p i l o t hole. We d i d not d r i l l past the zone and l o g i t , we 

2 j u s t stopped at 8,500, set our casing, kicked out there, 

3 and encountered the Abo where we suspected i t . 

4 I t h i n k we a c t u a l l y encountered i t around l i k e 

5 8,810 or 8,812, somewhere around there, TDV. And then --

6 the plan changes when you s t a r t d r i l l i n g , but t h e y ' l l be 

7 looking at mud logs and move up and down and geo-steer i t 

8 as we go about our business. And we've done t h i s many 

9 times out here. 

10 Q. And so you would have a s i m i l a r plan f o r the 

11 d r i l l i n g of the two proposed wells? 

12 A. Correct. 

13 Q. Okay. And then there i s a page t i t l e d "Peak" 

14 and there's a couple of documents. Would you discuss 

15 those f o r the examiners? 

16 A. The f i r s t page i s j u s t a -- i t ' s a h y d r a u l i c a l l y 

17 set t o o l . I t ' s a l i n e r t o run i n an open hole. I t ' s Low 

18 Abo, mostly dolomite w i t h some l i n e . So we run the peak 

19 system i n here and t h i s i s our drawing. 

20 And what i t i s i s , i t ' s a packer, open-hole 

21 i s o l a t i o n packer w i t h quartz. And you s h i f t those quartz 

22 by dropping d i f f e r e n t size b a l l s . So you get eight 

23 stages. And w i t h f r a c i n g , you j u s t drop the b a l l and then 

24 go t o the next stage, drop the b a l l and go t o the next 

25 stage. 
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1 Q. And again, the schematic of the w e l l i s 

2 r e f l e c t i v e of what you a c t u a l l y d i d on the No. 3 w e l l ; i s 

3 tha t correct? 

4 A. Yes, t h i s i s the actual -- I believe t h i s i s the 

5 actual run one and not j u s t the pre one. Obviously, i f 

6 you d r i l l a w e l l , what you see on the mud l o g i s going t o 

7 change depending on what you encounter on the w e l l bore. 

8 Q. Okay. And t h i s i s the w e l l t h a t you got the 

9 best r e s u l t s on, correct? 

10 A. Yes, t h i s i s the w e l l we got the best r e s u l t s . 

11 The one j u s t south of 2-H was p r e t t y good. Was b e t t e r 

12 than average also. But t h i s one was much b e t t e r than 

13 average, and we believe t h a t has t o do w i t h the more 

14 aggressive staging i n a d d i t i o n t o the simultaneous 

15 f r a c t u r e t h a t was done. 

16 Q. And next there are two AFEs. Would you b r i e f l y 

17 describe what those are? 

18 A. Yes. I was asked t o update an AFE here l a s t 

19 week on the two tha t were o r i g i n a l l y submitted. I n these 

2 0 new AFEs, I've -- these include the eight stage -- a 

21 l a r g e r f r a c job, and i t ' s i n a n t i c i p a t i o n t h a t w e ' l l do 

22 one s i m i l a r t o the 2-H and 3-H based on the r e s u l t s . 

23 So there are some d i f f e r e n c e s . I believe the 

24 1-H has a p i l o t hole and the 2-H does not, although I 

25 t h i n k we're 
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1 Q. Which r e s u l t s i n the d i f f e r e n c e i n cost? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. I t costs a couple hundred thousand more? 

4 A. Yeah. I t ' s u s u a l l y around 300 thousand, 

5 thereabouts, i s what t h a t p i l o t hole costs. 

6 Q. And are these w e l l costs f a i r and reasonable f o r 

7 wells d r i l l e d t o t h i s depth, h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s d r i l l e d t o 

8 t h i s depth and f o r t h i s length and t h i s area i n New 

9 Mexico? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And what i s the f i n a l document i n t h i s e x h i b i t 

12 booklet? 

13 A. The f i n a l document shows the immediate w e l l s i n 

14 the area t h a t we're t a l k i n g about. I t shows the 

15 Enterprise 1-H we d r i l l e d f i r s t . Then we came and d r i l l e d 

16 the Yorktown 2. Then we d r i l l e d the Enterprise 2-H and 

17 then the 3-H without the p i l o t hole. 

18 And you can see the improvement we're seeing out 

19 there based on experience and what we're seeing and -- you 

2 0 know. 

21 Q. Does shortening the d r i l l i n g time g e n e r a l l y --

22 not always, but generally r e s u l t i n lower w e l l costs? 

23 A. Yes. They u s u a l l y r e l a t e very w e l l t o your 

24 t o t a l cost of the w e l l . 

25 Q. And were the e x h i b i t s t h a t you j u s t discussed 
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1 e i t h e r prepared by you or compiled from company business 

2 records? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. And i n your opinion, i s the gr a n t i n g of 

5 Cimarex's pool i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s , and by the same token, the 

6 denial of COG's pooling a p p l i c a t i o n s , i n the i n t e r e s t o f 

7 conservation and the prevention of waste? 

8 A. I believe i t i s . 

9 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, at t h i s p o i n t I tender 

10 the admission of the e n t i r e E x h i b i t 1 booklet. 

11 MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

12 MR. BRUCE: And I pass the witness. 

13 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll admit E x h i b i t 1 i n i t s 

14 e n t i r e t y . And you may go ahead w i t h your cross. 

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. HALL: 

17 Q. Mr. Audas, how w i l l the denial of COG's APDs 

18 r e s u l t i n the prevention of waste and p r o t e c t i o n of 

19 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

2 0 A. I believe based on the experience we've had out 

21 there we can go out there and h i t a home run r i g h t o f f the 

22 bat. I t h i n k someone else going out there would have t o 

23 go through the same l e a r n i n g steps we had t o go through. 

24 Q. Let me see i f I understand the answer t o th a t 

25 question. Do you agree tha t e i t h e r COG and Cimarex can 
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1 d r i l l these wells --

2 A. I believe we're both competent. I believe 

3 there's always -- i n d r i l l i n g a w e l l , there's always a 

4 chance f o r problems, and I believe we have a lesser chance 

5 of that based on our experience. 

6 Q. Okay. Do you know what experience COG has had? 

7 A. I'm aware of some of the we l l s they've d r i l l e d 

8 i n the Lower Abo, but they are not i n t h i s d i r e c t 

9 township, and I don't have f u l l access t o a l l t h e i r 

10 r e p o r t s . I don't t h i n k we're partners i n a l l of t h e i r 

11 s t u f f , so... 

12 Q. You've not attempted t o analyze t h e i r experience 

13 i n h o r i z o n t a l d r i l l i n g s ? 

14 A. No, I have. Based on the in f o r m a t i o n I have 

15 from them, I have analyzed t h e i r I'm not saying they're 

16 not competent, I'm j u s t saying we're both competent but 

17 we're more competent, I f e e l . 

18 Q. You prepared new AFEs -- i t looks l i k e you 

19 almost worked New Year's Eve, December 30, 2008? 

20 A. Yes. And t h a t was the f i r s t I heard of t h i s 

21 hearing was th a t day. 

22 Q. I see. And so costs were updated. Were these 

23 AFEs presented t o e i t h e r Chesapeake or COG? 

24 A. I'm unaware of what t h e i r status i s . 

25 Q. Did you compare the updated date of fee costs 
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1 w i t h COG's AFEs? 

2 A. I saw COG's AFE but I d i d not compare i t l i n e by 

3 l i n e or anything of t h a t nature. 

4 Q. You don't have any reason t o t e s t i f y t h a t COG's 

5 AFE costs were unreasonable? 

6 A. No. No, absolut e l y . 

7 Q. Can you t e l l us what Cimarex might have done i n 

8 order t o prepare f o r the d r i l l i n g of these wells? I'm not 

9 sure whether c a p i t a l has been committed t o them. You do 

10 have a surface agreement. Do you know i f an 

11 archaeological survey has been done? 

12 A. I've haven't handled the re g u l a t o r y side so I 

13 don't -- I haven't seen t h a t . 

14 Q. You don't know i f any NOS forms or APD forms 

15 have been prepared yet? 

16 A. I haven't been n o t i f i e d of any. 

17 Q. You j u s t don't know? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. And Cimarex has not prepared d r i l l i n g plans 

20 s p e c i f i c f o r these wells y e t ; i s t h a t correct? 

21 A. I have done some p r e l i m i n a r y d r i l l i n g progs on 

22 t h i s . I haven't submitted f o r mud bids or b i d bids, or 

23 anything of th a t s o r t . I mean, I've prepared some plans. 

24 I have t o t o make an AFE. 

25 Q. Okay. And are you aware t h a t Cimarex has f i l e d 
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1 an a p p l i c a t i o n i n Case No. 14269 t o cancel COG's APDs, are 

2 you aware of that? 

3 A. I t h i n k I heard of tha t yesterday. I'm not r e a l 

4 clear of the numbers and a l l , but I've heard something of 

5 t h a t nature. 

6 Q. And can you t e l l us what grounds Cimarex i s 

7 asserti n g f o r the c a n c e l l a t i o n f o r those p r e v i o u s l y 

8 approved APDs? 

9 A. I believe i t was so we could go get our own 

10 permits to d r i l l these w e l l s . That's my understanding. 

11 Q. So the only issue i s who gets t o operate, 

12 there's no other issue? 

13 A. Yes, tha t ' s the way I understand i t . 

14 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Brooks? 

16 MR. BROOKS: No questions. 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: Brings up a good po i n t on --

18 I've got a question or two as f a r as operating. I f COG 

19 were t o operate those w e l l s , do you get involved w i t h 

20 t h e i r engineers, t h e i r d r i l l i n g f o l k s ? 

21 THE WITNESS: Generally, I haven't handled OBO 

22 operated by others. I t h i n k sometimes maybe one of the 

23 r e s e r v o i r engineer's or -- I'm more concerned w i t h a c t u a l 

24 our operations. I generally do not -- other than 

25 asking, hey, you know, we're partners and i f you a l l d i d 
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something, can you t e l l me -- help me. But as f a r as 

2 a c t u a l l y t e l l i n g them what or how t o do i t on a day-to-day 

3 basis, no. 

4 HEARING EXAMINER: But generally speaking, i f 

5 you're involved w i t h another company they're o p e r a t i n g , do 

6 you exchange ideas, have input i n t o how they d r i l l ? 

7 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

8 HEARING EXAMINER: So one company could b e n e f i t 

9 by another company's experience or expertise? 

10 THE WITNESS: Yes. At times there i s some 

11 p r o p r i e t a r y s t u f f t h a t we do not want t o share, but other 

12 times there i s some sharing. 

13 HEARING EXAMINER: And i t ' s a l l what's r e q u i r e d 

14 i n everyone's best i n t e r e s t probably t o share that? 

15 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

16 HEARING EXAMINER: As f a r as the AFEs go, and I 

17 can't remember on the COG case, but as the hearing 

18 examiner, I'm u l t i m a t e l y going to have t o w r i t e the order 

19 f o r these cases, how does your AFE compare? 

20 THE WITNESS: I saw t h e i r AFE. I believe i t was 

21 r i g h t around f i v e m i l l i o n , plus or minus. So w i t h a p i l o t 

22 hole, they're going t o be comparable. But i f we e l i m i n a t e 

23 t h a t p i l o t hole, we should be under t h e i r s . 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: When we're doing the AFEs 

25 now, i f we d i d t h i s AFE at the end of December versus s i x 
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1 months ago, are costs coming down? 

2 THE WITNESS: Some costs are. Some costs are 

3 s t i l l high. You know, w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d at the end 

4 of the year are s t i l l being completed. So some costs have 

5 come down, not a l l of them, but I expect costs t o continue 

6 t o f a l l down as --

7 HEARING EXAMINER: You have s t a r t e d to see some 

8 d r i l l i n g costs and surface d r i l l i n g costs come down? 

9 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

10 HEARING EXAMINER: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

11 MR. BRUCE: I don't have any more questions of 

12 t h i s witness. 

13 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

14 HEARING EXAMINER: Let's take a 10 minute break. 

15 (Note: A break was taken.) 

16 HEARING EXAMINER: We're back on the record 

17 again. We're i n the middle of Cases 14253 and 14254. 

18 Mr. Hall? 

19 MR. HALL: We c a l l our witness Jan Spradlin. 

20 JAN PRESTON SPRADLIN, 

21 the witness herein, a f t e r f i r s t being duly sworn 

22 upon her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

2 3 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. HALL: 

25 Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 
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1 A. Jan Preston Spradlin. 

2 Q. And Ms. Spradlin, you've pr e v i o u s l y been sworn 

3 today; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

4 A. Yes, I have. 

5 Q. And you pre v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the D i v i s i o n 

6 and. i t s examiners and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert 

7 petroleum landmand accepted and made a matter of record; 

8 i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

9 A. Yes, I have. 

10 Q . I guess I should explain, you work f o r COG 

11 operating as a landman? 

12 A. Yes, I do. 

13 MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Examiner, we o f f e r 

14 Ms.. Spradlin as an expert petroleum landman. 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: I remember Ms. Spradlin, and 

16 she i s so recognized. 

17 Q. Ms. Spradlin, l e t me ask you, do you acknowledge 

18 the r e c e i p t of the Cimarex w e l l proposals f o r the south 

19 h a l f of Section 10? 

2 0 A. Yes, I do. 

21 Q. And COG d i d not agree t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e i r 

22 w e l l s ; i s t h a t correct? 

23 A. No, we d i d not. 

24 Q. And exp l a i n why. 

2 5 A. Because we have proposals out t o Cimarex. 
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Q. Okay. And pr e v i o u s l y , your proposals went out 

on what date t o Cimarex? 

A. The o r i g i n a l proposal went out i n December of 

2007, and then another proposal was sent out -- i t was 

sent t o Chevron and Chesapeake on September 15th. We had 

notice from James Baca w i t h Chevron t h a t they were working 

a trade w i t h Cimarex, and we also n o t i c e d Cimarex at t h a t 

time on September 23rd. 

Q. And n e i t h e r Chevron nor Cimarex responded 

favorably t o the COG w e l l proposals; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. There has been no response or communication. 

Q. And d i d tha t cause COG t o f i l e i t s own 

ap p l i c a t i o n s f o r compulsory pooling i n Cases 14203 and 

14204? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . Because we had had the j o i n d e r of 

Chesapeake w i t h us. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s Chesapeake's i n t e r e s t c u r r e n t l y 

under an operating agreement w i t h COG? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. So does COG own, speak f o r , or c o n t r o l 50 

percent of the working i n t e r e s t i n the p r o r a t i o n units? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And you were a witness i n Cases 14203 and 14204, 

were you not? 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. And they were heard before Examiner Warnell on 

2 October 28th, I believe? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. And at t h a t time, those two cases were taken 

5 under advisement without o b j e c t i o n by Cimarex; do you 

6 r e c a l l that? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. Okay. I n the course of planning f o r COG's 

9 development i n t h i s township, d i d you enter i n t o 

10 negotiations w i t h the rancher who operated the surface? 

11 A. Yes, we d i d . 

12 Q. And th a t covered a number of COG's w e l l 

13 l o c a t i o n s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

14 A. Correct. 

15 Q. Let me hand you what we've marked f o r t h i s 

16 hearing as COG E x h i b i t 1. Can i d e n t i f y this? 

17 A. Yes. I t ' s the acreage t h a t i s under the Medlin 

18 agreement. 

19 Q. Okay. Now, who i s Medlin? 

20 A. B i l l Medlin and his w i f e are the surface owners 

21 and tenants and own the m a j o r i t y fee acreage and i n - s t a t e 

22 acreage i n 15-31 i n t h i s area. 

23 Q. And i n f a c t , t h i s same e x h i b i t i s already a 

24 matter of record i n Cases 14203 and 14204; i s t h a t 

25 correct? 
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1 A. Correct. 

2 Q. And you prepared t h i s ; i s t h a t correct? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. I f we look at the acreage we're t a l k i n g about 

5 here today, the south h a l f of Section 10, i t shows a 

6 crosshatched acreage. What does t h a t crosshatching 

7 represent? 

8 A. That we've made an agreement w i t h Mr. Medlin as 

9 e i t h e r t o h i s fee surface or as a tenant under the s t a t e 

10 land. 

11 Q. A l l r i g h t . And w i t h respect t o these s p e c i f i c 

12 w e l l s t h a t COG proposed f o r the south h a l f of Section 10, 

13 d i d COG make s p e c i f i c accommodations t o Mr. Medlin? 

14 A. Yes, we d i d . We permitted our Taurus f e d e r a l 

15 w e l l i n i t i a l l y , and before we went t o -- When we were 

16 f i n i s h i n g up on the our other three Taurus wells, he asked 

17 -- because h i s homestead i s i n Section 9, he asked i f we 

18 could f l i p our surface and bottom hole l o c a t i o n s on those 

19 w e l l s t o put the ac t u a l operations as f a r from his 

20 homestead as possible. 

21 And he understood we -- i f there were any k i n d 

22 of surface issues or things l i k e t h a t , we couldn't do i t , 

23 but i f i t was at a l l possible. And we were able to 

24 accommodate him. 

25 Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f we look at what has been 
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1 marked f o r t h i s hearing as E x h i b i t No. 2, t h i s shows 

2 Section 10 there, does i t not? 

3 A. Yes, i t does. 

4 Q. And i s Mr. Medlin's ranch house depicted t h e r e 

5 on Section 9? 

6 A. Yes, i t i s , i n the southeast quarter. 

7 Q. And E x h i b i t 2 was prepared by you f o r the 

8 previous hearing; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

9 A. Correct. 

10 Q. Okay. Can you t e l l us over what pe r i o d of time 

11 COG's land s t a f f was n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h Mr. Medlin t o o b t a i n 

12 h i s agreement t o surface use i n t h i s area? 

13 A. We s t a r t e d n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h him as soon as we 

14 acquired the lease, the two fe d e r a l leases from HAYCO i n 

15 J u l y of 2007. 

16 Q. And you successfully executed a Surface Use 

17 Agreement w i t h Mr. Medlin? 

18 A. Yes, we d i d . 

19 Q. And was notice of th a t Surface Use Agreement the 

20 subject of a recording memorandum i n the county records? 

21 A. Yes, i t was. 

22 Q. And i s tha t the memorandum dated September 27, 

23 2007 which i s shown by E x h i b i t 3? 

24 A. Correct. 

25 Q. So Cimarex would have been charged w i t h n o t i c e 
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1 of t h i s surface agreement when they ran t h e i r records? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Now, i f we look at the Cimarex Surface Use and 

4 Compensation Agreement -- you don't have t h a t i n f r o n t of 

5 you, but E x h i b i t A t o t h e i r agreement w i t h respect t o 

6 Section 10, what acreage i s covered f o r Section 10? 

7 A. I t covers the west h a l f also. 

8 Q. Okay. And your Surface Use Agreement covers the 

9 south h a l f of Section 10; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

10 A. I t covers the west h a l f , and i t does the 

11 southwest quarter also -- southeast quarter. 

12 Q. Let's look back at your E x h i b i t 1. 

13 A. Yeah, we also had an agreement w i t h him on the 

14 southeast quarter. - " " """x 

15 Q. Okay. And so apparently, Cimarex does not have v 

16 a Surface Use Agreement w i t h Mr. Medlin f o r i t s w e l l . / 

17 l o c a t i o n s i n the southeast quarter on the surface? / 

18 A. I'm not aware of anything. They don't say they / 

~X9 dcr~on"thi s\ 

2 0 Q. Okay. Look back at our E x h i b i t 2. Would you 

21 e x p l a i n i n a l i t t l e more d e t a i l what t h i s shows, what's 

22 depicted on here? 

23 A. I t ' s our i n i t i a l l o c a t i o n s i n each of our 

24 sections where we own leaseholds, and i t i s an agreement 

25 t h a t we have w i t h Mr. Medlin on the routes and how we 
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would traverse his lands. 

2 Q. Okay. So, the l o c a t i o n of COG's surface 

3 f a c i l i t i e s and lease roads were determined pursuant t o 

4 n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Mr. Medlin? 

5 A. Yes, they were. 

6 Q. And th a t ' s what's shown on your E x h i b i t 2? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q- Now, COG has i n hand approved d r i l l i n g p e rmits 

9 f o r both of i t s wells i n the south h a l f of Section 10, 

10 correct? 

11 A. Yes, we do. 

12 Q. And i s i t COG's plan t o s t a r t d r i l l i n g t h i s 

13 year? 

14 A. Those w e l l s , the Taurus w e l l s , are on our 

15 d r i l l i n g schedule f o r March. 

16 Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t . Has Cimarex ever i n d i c a t e d t o 

17 you or anyone else at COG, t o your knowledge, why i t would 

18 not p a r t i c i p a t e i n COG's wells? 

19 A. No, they have not. 

20 Q. Is there any i n d i c a t i o n from Cimarex t o COG t h a t 

21 i t objected t o COG's d r i l l i n g plans or completion 

22 proposals? 

23 A. Not t o my knowledge, no. 

24 Q. Was there any o b j e c t i o n stated t o COG over COG's 

25 proposed costs and i t ' s AFEs? 
1 
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1 A. Not t o my knowledge, no. 

2 Q. Okay. We heard some testimony about the 

3 relevant experience of Cimarex i n d r i l l i n g h o r i z o n t a l 

4 w e l l s i n southeast New Mexico. Can you t e l l the h e a r i n g 

5 examiners how many h o r i z o n t a l Wolfcamp wells COG has 

6 d r i l l e d ? 

7 A. We have d r i l l e d -- we have d r i l l e d none i n 15-31 

8 as of t h i s date. We have d r i l l e d and completed since t h e 

9 t h i r d quarter of 2006 ten h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , Wolfcamp 

10 w e l l s . 

11 Q. And have you p a r t i c i p a t e d i n a d d i t i o n a l 

12 non-operative wells? 

13 A. Yes, we have. We have been a partner w i t h 

14 Cimarex i n two of the Enterprise w e l l s , Cave Lake w e l l s 

15 over on 16-28, and I believe there's one other one, the 

16 Yorktown. 

17 Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, we've heard some testimony 

18 about the Cimarex Enterprise w e l l and t h e i r use of the 

19 simultaneous f r a c technique f o r those p a r a l l e l w e l l s . 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Do you r e c a l l hearing that testimony? 

22 A. I know t h a t they d i d the simultaneous f r a c . We 

23 had i n t e r e s t i n one of the wells t h a t i t was used on. We 

24 d i d not have an i n t e r e s t i n the w e l l above i t . We know 

25 t h a t i t was successful, but I am not -- I don't know a l o t 
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1 of d e t a i l s on t h a t . 

2 Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you know whether based on COG's 

3 p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h a t Enterprise w e l l t h a t COG has any 

4 plans t o change i t s f r a c or completion techniques as a 

5 r e s u l t , do you see anything there t h a t compels you t o do 

6 anything l i k e that? 

7 A. Not t o my knowledge. I n t a l k i n g w i t h our 

8 engineers, they've -- i n our recent completions i n o t h e r 

9 areas, they have been very happy w i t h the r e s u l t s we have 

10 gotten. 

11 Q. A l l r i g h t . Were E x h i b i t s 1, 2 and 3 prepared by 

12 you or at your d i r e c t i o n ? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 MR. HALL: And at t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Examiner, we'd 

15 move the admission again of E x h i b i t s 1, 2, and 3. They 

16 were pr e v i o u s l y submitted f o r the record i n Case 

17 Nos. 14203 and 14204. We ask t h a t the examiner take 

18 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of the record of the e x h i b i t s 

19 submitted i n tha t case as w e l l . 

20 And i n a d d i t i o n , Mr. Examiner, i f I might -- Let 

21 me j u s t go ahead and move t h e i r admission. 

22 HEARING EXAMINER: Any objections? 

23 MR. BRUCE: No obj e c t i o n s . 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll j u s t readmit those, 

25 E x h i b i t s 1, 2, and 3. They're already i n COG's case f i l e s 
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1 2 03 and 2 04. 

2 MR. BROOKS: They are. These are COG's 

3 e x h i b i t s . They've already been admitted? 

4 HEARING EXAMINER: No, these were admitted back 

5 i n October w i t h COG's cases. 

6 MR. BROOKS: We need t o admit them i n t h i s case 

7 so t h e y ' l l be a par t of t h i s record. 

8 HEARING OFFICER: Right. So Ex h i b i t s 1, 2, and 

9 3 w i l l be admitted. 

10 MR. HALL: That concludes my d i r e c t , unless 

11 there i s any o b j e c t i o n t o the admission of --

12 MR. BRUCE: No o b j e c t i o n . Did you have 

13 something else, Mr. H a l l , you were going t o --

14 MR. HALL: I'm f i n i s h e d w i t h d i r e c t . 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Bruce? 

16 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. BRUCE: 

18 Q. Ms. Spradlin, these cases -- Well, take a step 

19 back. Your cases and Cimarex cases were k i n d of 

20 p r e c i p i t a t e d by a mass of a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d by Chesapeake 

21 l a s t f a l l ; i s n ' t t h a t correct? 

22 A. That's c o r r e c t . I n December of 2007. 

23 Q. But l a s t f a l l , Chesapeake f i l e d a bunch of ' L--—̂  

24 a p p l i c a t i o n s seeking t o cancel COG's -- some of COG's APDs 

25 and some of Cimarex's APDs, and then force pool. / 
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1 Apparently, Chesapeake wanted t o operate the 

2 section, from what I could see. But t h a t ' s what 

3 p r e c i p i t a t e d these cases, i s i t not. 

4 A. Correct. 

5 Q. Now -- and I don't know, and maybe you can g i v e 

6 me a b a l l p a r k f i g u r e , how many of those cases involved 

7 Chesapeake and COG? 

8 A. I t was b a s i c a l l y on two f e d e r a l leases s i t u a t e d 

9 i n 10, 15, 14, and 13. 

10 Q. Okay. And Chesapeake and COG s e t t l e d -- Take a 

11 step back again. Cimarex and Chesapeake were involved i n 

12 c e r t a i n cases, and t o the best of your knowledge, they 

13 s e t t l e d a bunch of t h e i r cases, correct? 

14 A. I t ' s been mentioned, but I don't know which 

15 ones. 

16\ Q. Okay. And by the same token, COG and Chesapeake 

17, s e t t l e d a bunch of t h e i r cases? 
I 

18 A. Correct. 

l j Q. By agreeing t o -- e i t h e r one support the other 

2 0 f o r the operator? 

21 A. We entered i n t o an operating agreement covering 

22 a l l of our joint-owned acreage, which were two f e d e r a l 

23 leases, and agreed on operations w i t h i n the operating 

i 
24 agreement f o r each area. 

25 Q. O k a y . And t h e s e t w o p a r t i c u l a r w e l l u n i t s , a s 
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1 part of the settlement, d i d Chesapeake j u s t say, "You can 

2 proceed w i t h your pooling cases, we w i l l support you," i n 

3 these two units? 

4 A. I n the south h a l f of 10? 

5 Q. Yes. 

6 A. I t wasn't discussed, because we're under an 

7 operating agreement, we agreed we would operate -- I mean, 

8 yes, I guess they d i d by signing our operating agreement 

9 and e n t e r i n g i n t o , t h a t we would be operating the south 

10 h a l f . 

11 Q. Okay. And when was -- and I don't remember the 

12 s p e c i f i c s of the operating agreement, but when was the 

13 operating agreement signed? 

14 A. P r i o r t o our hearing i n October. 

15 Q. And at th a t hearing i n October where COG 

16 presented i t s two cases, COG d i d not present a g e o l o g i s t , 

17 d i d they? 

18 A. No, we d i d n ' t . 

19 Q. And so -- I'm simply g e t t i n g at the same 

20 question t h a t Mr. H a l l asked Mr. Tresner, t h a t both 

21 p a r t i e s are seeking the same geo l o g i c a l o b j e c t i v e , 

2 2 apparently? 

23 A. Yes, we are. 

24 Q. And Mr. H a l l sa id tha t COG's cases were taken 

25 under advisement wi thou t o b j e c t i o n by Cimarex. You were 
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1 aware t h a t Cimarex had f i l e d competing pooling 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n s , weren't you? 

3 A. No, I was not. I didn' t receive those u n t i l I 

4 got back t o Midland, Texas. 

5 Q. I hand d e l i v e r e d those t o Mr. H a l l . He d i d not 

6 t e l l you t h a t Cimarex had f i l e d ? 

7 MR. HALL: I guess I have t o object t o the 

8 question. That c a l l s f o r p r i v i l e g e d communications. 

9 Q. I'm not asking f o r p r i v i l e g e d communications, 

10 I'm merely asking, d i d Mr. H a l l give you copies of the 

11 a p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d by Cimarex? 

12 A. I di d n ' t have anything u n t i l I got back t o 

13 Midland, Texas. I was not aware of anything. And I t h i n k 

14 I stated t h a t t o you when you asked i f I had received 

15 anything, and I was, l i k e , "No." 

16 Q. And Cimarex has stated t h a t COG i s competent t o 

17 operate, and COG believes Cimarex i s a competent operate? 

18 A. Now what? Repeat t h a t , please? 

19 Q. I said, COG has -- Cimarex has stated that COG 

2 0 i s a competent operator; does COG believe t h a t Cimarex i s 

21 a competent operator? 

22 A. Yes, i n the operations t h a t we've been i n w i t h 

23 them, i n we l l s we've been i n w i t h them. 

24 Q. Regarding the surface use agreement, are you 

2 5 aware the -- You stated t h a t COG has a Surface Use 
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Agreement on the southeast quarter of Section 10, but 

2 Cimarex does not. Are you aware th a t --

3 A. I t ' s --

4 Q. State owned surface --

5 A. But we have agreed w i t h Mr. Medlin on any 

6 damages th a t might have been occurred on t h a t . 

7 Q. Okay. 

8 A. He has been paid no money. 

9 Q. But under the Surface Owner Protection Act, t h e 

10 surface owner, the State, would be the p a r t y you would pay 

11 damages t o and not the leasee. 

12 A. Right. 

13 Q. On th a t quarter section. 

14 MR. HALL: Well, I object. I t h i n k t h a t 

15 mischaracterizes what the Act says. I t h i n k i t ' s beyond 

16 the scope of d i r e c t as w e l l . We didn't ask her about the 

17 Ac t . 

18 / Q. But on a State owned surface, the Surface Use// 

19 ' Agreement i s not necessarily needed? 9 

20 \ A- Correct. 

21 Q • And you stated t h a t you made an accommodation --

22 or COG made an accommodation to the Medlins t o d r i l l one 

23 w e l l -- to move one surface l o c a t i o n so i t wasn't near 

24 t h e i r -

25 A. We moved three. We moved the n o r t h h a l f 
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l o c a t i o n s also. They were f l i p p e d , a l l three. Other t h a n 

the Taurus Federal No. 1, we f l i p p e d a l l three other 

l o c a t i o n s i n t h a t section t o accommodate t h e i r request. 

Q. Okay. And I d i d provide you w i t h Cimarex's 

e x h i b i t booklet. Did you review the AFEs and see th a t 

both of t h e i r surface l o c a t i o n s are i n the southeast 

qua.rter of Section 10? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Just a couple of f i n a l questions. I n l o o k i n g i n 

-- t h i s i s your e x h i b i t booklet from the hearing a couple 

months ago. And you presented a d r i l l i n g schedule. And 

i n response t o Mr. Hall's question, you stated t h a t b o t h 

of the Taurus w e l l s i n the south h a l f of Section 10 were 

on COG's schedule f o r t h i s year; i s tha t correct? 

A. I know I said a Taurus w e l l was on the schedule. 

Well, I'm looking at --

Which i t i s . 

-- your d r i l l i n g schedule, and the Taurus 10 Fed 

No. 1 i s on the d r i l l i n g schedule, i s i t not? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I s the Taurus -- I t h i n k i t ' s the 10 State 

No. 2 -- or maybe i t ' s No. 1, I'm sorry, i s the other 

Taurus w e l l on COG's d r i l l i n g schedule? 

A. I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d a copy of my d r i l l i n g 

schedule. Because I don't have t h a t e x h i b i t . 
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1 Q. What I'm looking at i s -- Let me -- (Witness 

2 handed a document.) I s t h a t what you presented at the 

3 p r i o r hearing? 

4 A. Yes. But we do have a -- I believe a r e v i s e d 

5 one. Didn't we? I'm t r y i n g t o -- But t h a t was our 

6 schedule. 

7 Q. And the second w e l l i s not on there; i s t h a t 

8 correct? 

9 A. No, i t ' s not. 

10 Q. And also, there were a couple other w e l l s t h a t 

11 were i n red on t h i s schedule, a Comet 22 No. 4, a Caribou 

12 19, No. 1. Those were the f i r s t w ells on the schedule f o r 

13 November and December of l a s t year. Have those w e l l s been 

14 d r i l l e d ? 

15 A. The Comet 22 has been d r i l l e d . We're c u r r e n t l y 

16 d r i l l i n g the Ranger Pueblo No. 3 and we're d r i l l i n g the 

17 High Lonesome 23 No. 1. 

18 Q. The Caribou 19 No. 1 has not been --

19 A. I t has been postponed. 

2 0 Q. Okay. And has COG committed funds f o r both the 

21 Taurus w e l l s i n the south h a l f of Section 10 f o r 2009? 

22 A. I believe they have been. 

23 Q. Has an AFE been prepared i n your e x h i b i t booklet 

24 -- And I believe the d r i l l i n g engineer t e s t i f i e d about 

25 t h a t , about the AFEs, but I t h i n k submitted an AFE only 
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1 f o r the f i r s t well? 

2 A. As f a r as -- t o Cimarex? Or i n the --

3 Q. I n the e x h i b i t booklet, your e x h i b i t booklet 

4 from the p r i o r hearing. 

5 A. I know we d i d --we had i t f o r the Taurus 

6 Federal Well. 

7 Q. Yeah, I'm looking -- you submitted behind 

8 E x h i b i t Tab 13 an AFE f o r the Taurus Federal No. 1. Has 

9 an AFE ever been prepared f o r the Taurus State Well, the 

10 second one? 

11 A. I'm not sure. I t appears t h a t we've only done 

12 the Taurus -- actual AFEs f o r the Taurus Federal one i n my 

13 i n f o r m a t i o n here. 

14 Q. I t ' s not tha t one hasn't been prepared, one was 

15 not submitted i n t o evidence at the hearing, correct? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . The f e d e r a l one was the one i n 

17 the booklet. 

18 Q. And correct me i f I'm wrong, I believe you 

19 st a t e d t h a t you weren't submitting one on the Taurus State 

20 Well at t h i s p o i n t on the hearing date because t h a t w e l l 

21 had not yet been scheduled f o r d r i l l i n g ? 

2 2 A. I know i t was on one tha t we t a l k e d about 

23 scheduling, but we d i d our i n i t i a l w e l l , we have an 

24 o b l i g a t i o n w e l l , and we can only schedule so many w e l l s . 

25 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Examiner. 
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1 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Mr. Brooks, any 

2 questions? 

3 MR. BROOKS: You have an operating agreement 

4 w i t h Chesapeake tha t covers t h i s south h a l f of Section 10? 

5 THE WITNESS: Yes, we do. 

6 MR. BROOKS: And d i d you propose t h i s w e l l t o 

7 Chesapeake? 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes. And i n -- Well, under the 

9 operating agreement we have, t h e y ' l l have -- they have 

10 t h e i r proposal and have agreed. We're w a i t i n g t o f i n d out 

11 what goes on w i t h t h i s . 

12 MR. BROOKS: I'm sorry? 

13 THE WITNESS: We're w a i t i n g t o f i n d out what 

14 happens w i t h our other --

15 MR. BROOKS: Okay. So you have a s t a n d s t i l l on 

16 t h e i r making an e l e c t i o n to p a r t i c i p a t e or not? 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

18 MR. BROOKS: But you have an operating 

19 agreement? 

2 0 THE WITNESS: Yes, we do. 

21 MR. BROOKS: A l l r i g h t . That's a l l I have. 

22 HEARING EXAMINER: I have no questions of the 

23 witness. 

24 MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s wi tness . 

25 MR. BROOKS: Okay. Are the a t to rneys going t o 
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1 make c l o s i n g statements? 

2 MR. BRUCE: I was going t o make a b r i e f c l o s i n g 

3 argument. 

4 MR. BROOKS: Okay. I may have some questions 

5 but I ' l l wait u n t i l you make your c l o s i n g statements. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, or Mr. Examiners, 

7 whichever you p r e f e r , as the witness has stated, both 

8 p a r t i e s are competent operators, they both want t o 

9 operate. 

10 Mr. H a l l d i d submit a b r i e f the l a s t go round 

11 b a s i c a l l y s t a t i n g t h a t COG made the f i r s t w e l l proposal, 

12 and absent any other compelling f a c t o r s , t h a t as a r e s u l t , 

13 COG should be made operator. 

14 I would merely p o i n t out t h a t as our witnesses 

15 t e s t i f i e d , Cimarex has been a c t i v e i n t h i s area f o r a 

16 couple of years. The only reason i t was slow i n g e t t i n g 

17 out i t s proposal i s i t had t o deal w i t h Chevron f o r seven 

18 months before i t could get a term assignment. 

19 I t has not been d i l a t o r y i n proposing wells i n 

20 t h i s area, and the f a c t t h a t i t has d r i l l e d a number of 

21 wells i n t h i s area and has the best knowledge of how t o 

22 d r i l l and complete these wells should be a compelling 

23 f a c t o r i n g r a n t i n g operations t o Cimarex. 

24 I t s p i p e l i n e i s i n place. Cimarex has the 

25 l a r g e s t s i n g l e working i n t e r e s t , 50 percent; the other 
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1 p a r t i e s have 25 percent each i n the w e l l s , and we b e l i e v e 

2 t h i s f a c i l i t a t e s i n Cimarex's favor. 

3 We would urge the D i v i s i o n t o grant Cimarex's 

4 poo l i n g proposals and deny COG's pooling proposals. 

5 And there i s one other f a c t o r I would l i k e t o 

6 b r i n g up. I t h i n k both attorneys asked questions and both 

7 land witnesses got asked questions on the t i m i n g of the 

8 d r i l l i n g of these w e l l s , and COG says both wells are on 

9 the schedule. 

10 The we l l schedule I saw d i d not show the second 

11 south h a l f of Section 10 w e l l on COG's d r i l l i n g schedule. 

12 And I would merely p o i n t out t h a t because of the t i m i n g , 

13 today's economics, on questionable matters l i k e t h i s when 

14 these w e l l s are d r i l l e d and the f a c t t h a t because of 

15 competing a p p l i c a t i o n s , i f whenone par t y wins and one 

16 p a r t y loses, the chances of an appeal may be l i k e l y - . I _ 

17 would ask t h a t any type of e l e c t i o n be postponed under_„the(. 

18 terms of the orders, number one, u n t i l a Commission / 

19 decision is finally -- or until there is a final decision . 

20 either of the Division or of the Commission. ^ 

21 And even once t h a t happens, i n the event t h a t 

22 these w e l l s are put out f o r d r i l l i n g f o r some number of 

23 months, which could w e l l occur, t h a t a par t y not be 

24 req u i r e d t o pay the money upfr o n t u n t i l 3 0 days before 

25 w e l l commencement. 
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1 So t h a t i f , f o r instance, one w e l l i s n ' t d r i l l e d 

2 u n t i l November or December and I don't t h i n k i t would 

3 be equitable t o have one p a r t y have to e l e c t and put up 

4 the money up f r o n t i f i t ' s going do s i t around f o r s i x , 

5 seven months while the p a r t i e s are w a i t i n g f o r a r u l i n g . 
6 Thank you. 

7 HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you. Mr. Hall? 

8 MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, there's nothing unusual 

9 about t h i s case. I t h i n k the record i s c l e a r the p a r t i e s 

10 agree there i s no issue w i t h respect to geology, no issue 

11 w i t h respect t o w e l l costs, no issue w i t h respect t o 

12 operator competence. 

13 The D i v i s i o n has addressed these cases before . 

14 I t h i n k i t ' s been w e l l decided t h a t you look to d i l i g e n c e , 

15 look to who i s going do develop reserves f i r s t . 

16 I n t h i s case, COG i s w e l l ahead of the curve, 

17 Cimarex i s not; not through i t ' s circumstances e n t i r e l y of 

18 t h e i r making, but somewhat of t h e i r making. 

19 We provided you w i t h a b r i e f of the Agency's 

20 precedent f o r cases l i k e t h a t . We'll give you another 

21 copy j u s t so you have i t f o r your case f i l e s f o r these two 

22 cases. 

23 I t h i n k precedent i s c l e a r . The D i v i s i o n always 

24 favors the p a r t y showing dj^ligenee, the one who's 

25 undertaken t o ob t a in permits f i r s t , the one who's 
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1 undertaken t o obtain surface agreements f i r s t , the one 

2 t h a t ' s done the most t o promote development, and t h a t ' s 

3 COG. 

4 I have t o object t o the request t h a t any p o o l i n g 

5 order contain a p r o v i s i o n t h a t the e l e c t i o n be postponed. 

6 I'm not aware t h a t t h a t ' s ever been done before. I t h i n k 

7 t h a t ' s improper. I t h i n k t h a t may a c t u a l l y deter 

8 development i n t h i s case. 

9 The proper procedure would be f o r the D i v i s i o n 

10 t o issue what would otherwise be generic compulsory 

11 pooling orders, then Cimarex would be free t o come i n and 

12 apply f o r a stay of a l l or a p o r t i o n of the pooling order 

13 provided they could support i t w i t h some grounds. 

14 They haven't done t h a t here today. I t seems 

15 l i k e we may have t o have a separate hearing i f they want 

16 t o advance grounds that would j u s t i f y a stay l i k e t h a t . 

17 That's my suggestion. And we request t h a t you act on the 

18 a p p l i c a t i o n s f i r s t f i l e d i n t h i s case and award operations 

19 to COG i n both cases. 

20 HEARING EXAMINER: Very w e l l . Mr. Brooks? 

21 MR. BROOKS: Mr. Bruce, t h i s b r i e f t h a t Mr. H a l l 

22 prepared I guess i s the same one t h a t he f i l e d p r e v i o u s l y . 

23 Are you aware of any other p r e c e d e n t i a l orders from the 

24 Commission or the D i v i s i o n t h a t we ought t o consider? 

25 MR. BRUCE: No. The main case i s the order 
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1 number, our 10731D. 

2 MR. BROOKS: Which i s -- which one i s that? 

3 MR. BRUCE: The KCS Medallion and the I n t e r c o a s t 

4 O i l and Gas. I was involved i n t h a t case. And the 

5 Commission set f o r t h f a c t o r s -- I t h i n k you can probably 

6 short c i r c u i t i t by going through Pages --

7 MR. BROOKS: Is th a t also attached t o --

8 MR. BRUCE: Yes, i t ' s attached t o Mr. H a l l ' s 

9 b r i e f . And Pages 7 through 10 are the heart of the 

10 issuance of t h a t order. 

11 That order b a s i c a l l y said, number one, you look 

12 at geology. I don't t h i n k geology i s a f a c t o r here. 

13 Another f a c t o r i s -- but a minor f a c t o r , i s AFEs. Again, 

14 there i s not much evidence of t h a t . So what you look a t 

15 under t h i s order i s p r i m a r i l y i n t e r e s t ownership and who 

16 got the b a l l r o l l i n g . 

17 And again, j u s t t o repeat my argument, Cimarex 

18 does have the most at r i s k i n t h i s w e l l and we t h i n k 

19 t h a t ' s one f a c t o r t o consider. And the other f a c t o r i s , 

2 0 r e a l l y , when you look at t h i s township and some a d j o i n i n g 

21 nearby townships, Cimarex i s the one who has been the 

22 p l o t t i n g development i n t h i s township. 

23 MR. BROOKS: And of course, on i n t e r e s t 

24 ownership, i f Chesapeake i s added t o COG, they do have an 

25 operating agreement, we don't have any d e t a i l s about 
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1 Chesapeake, but we know they have an operating agreement, 

2 that makes i t 50/50, r i g h t ? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Yes, i t would. 

4 MR. BROOKS: Now, one of the things I r e c a l l 

5 from reading these opinions i n the past i s t h a t you should 

6 consider who developed the prospect. But we don't have --

7 we di d n ' t get any evidence on t h a t today and I don't 

8 r e c a l l any evidence on t h a t i n the previous hearings 

9 e i t h e r as t o who o r i g i n a l l y developed t h i s --

10 MR. BRUCE: I don't know who o r i g i n a l l y 

11 developed i t , but I t h i n k i f you look at the very f i r s t 

12 e x h i b i t s submitted by Mr. Tresner, you can see that 

13 Cimarex has d r i l l e d s i x w e l l s i n t h i s township and was the 

14 f i r s t one t o s t a r t d r i l l i n g out here. COG's wells have 

15 been of p r e t t y recent vintage of the l a s t couple months 

16 MR. BROOKS: Okay. I wasn't aware t h a t there 

17 was any r e a l evidence as t o what COG had d r i l l e d and when 

18 out here, but I would have t o review the record to know 

19 whether t h a t was the case. 

20 As I understood what the Commission had said 

21 was, they were concerned w i t h the e f f o r t t h a t had been put 

2 2 i n t o developing the prospect and perhaps rewarding t h a t . 

23 So I guess t h a t brings us down t o the question 

24 of -- t e c h n i c a l question of whether or not Cimarex has 

25 greater expertise i n d r i l l i n g w e l l s i n t h i s area i s mostly 
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1 what the evidence today was about. I s t h a t a c o r r e c t 

2 characterization? 

3 MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

4 MR. BROOKS: Do you have anything t o add, 

5 Mr. Hall? 

6 MR. HALL: Well, I would f l a t disagree because I 

7 t h i n k the record now establishes t h a t there i s no dis p u t e 

8 as t o expertise of e i t h e r operator. Both p a r t i e s agree 

9 t h a t e i t h e r i s competent. 

10 MR. BROOKS: Well, yeah, they both -- each has 

11 s a i d the other i s competent. I t ' s been s a i d by land 

12 witnesses who probably don't know very much about i t , but 

13 no ob j e c t i o n to the lack -- lack of testimony i n 

14 competence. 

15 But my understanding of the testimony was t h a t 

16 Cimarex believes they acquired some experience t h a t w i l l 

17 enable them t o do a b e t t e r job than somebody else could. 

18 MR. HALL: Well, i t ' s been unsubstantiated. I 

19 t h i n k that's at best an inference. You've heard t h i s 

20 witness t e s t i f y about COG's experience i n d r i l l i n g 

21 h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s . 

22 MR. BROOKS: Right. I don't remember what the 

23 evidence was about COG's experience i n d r i l l i n g i n the 

24 previous 

25 MR. HALL: I t was addressed i n the previous case 
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1 as w e l l . 

2 MR. BROOKS: Yeah, I assume i t was, b u t I j u s t 

3 d o n ' t r e c a l l t he ev idence c l e a r l y . Okay, I t h i n k we know 

4 whait t h e i s sues a r e . So t hank you v e r y much. 

5 Mr. W a r n e l l ? 

6 HEARING EXAMINER: I have no q u e s t i o n s . I ' l l 

7 have a l o t o f them l a t e r o n . So I t h i n k w i t h t h a t , i f 

8 t h e r e i s n o t h i n g f u r t h e r , w e ' l l t a k e Cases No. 14253 and 

9 14254 under adv i sement . And t h a t conc ludes o u r docke t f o r 

10 t o d a y . So Docket No. 1-09 w i l l s t a n d a d j o u r n e d . 

11 
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